ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 13, 2003
8:00 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

State Comm ssion for Human Rights

G ace Merkes - Sterling
Lester Charles Lunceford - Wiittier
Robert B. Sawyer, Jr. - Fairbanks

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

HOUSE BI LL NO. 15

"An Act relating to establishing the Alaska No-Call List, a data
base of residential telephone custonmers who do not wish to
receive telephonic solicitations; providing that the data base
be compiled at no cost to the custoners; requiring paid
tel ephonic sellers to purchase the data Dbase; requiring
tel ephonic sellers to identify thenselves; requiring telephonic
solicitors who are otherwise exenpt from registration as
tel ephonic solicitors to file with the Departnent of Law and
purchase the data base; and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 15(STA) OUT OF COWM TTEE
SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 55

"An Act expressing legislative intent regarding privately
operated correctional facility space and services; relating to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 13, 2003



t he devel opnent and financing of privately operated correctiona
facility space and services; authorizing the Departnent of
Corrections to enter into an agreenent for the confinenent and
care of prisoners in privately operated correctional facility
space; authorizing the Departnment of Corrections to enter into
agreenents with nmunicipalities to expand existing correctional
facilities; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 88

"An Act relating to prohibiting the use of cellular telephones
when operating a nmotor vehicle; and providing for an effective
date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 102
"An Act relating to conceal ed deadl y weapons."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 109
"An Act relating to the limtation on paynent of state treasury
warrants; and providing for an effective date.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO 132

"An Act relating to the duties of the attorney general;
requiring the attorney general to participate in all actions
affecting the managenent and jurisdiction of the natura
resources of the state; amending Rule 24(c), Al aska Rules of
Civil Procedure; and anending Rule 514, Alaska Rules of
Appel | ate Procedure.™

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BILL NO 134

"An Act authorizing the Departnment of Corrections to enter into
agreenents wth nmunicipalities for new or expanded public
correctional facilities in the Fairbanks North Star Borough, the
Mat anuska- Susitna Borough, Bethel, and the Mnicipality of
Anchor age. "

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 13, 2003



PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 15

SHORT TI TLE: TELEMARKETERS NO- CALL LI STS

SPONSOR( S) :

Jrn-Dat e
01/ 21/ 03
01/ 21/ 03

01/ 21/ 03
01/ 29/ 03
01/ 29/ 03
02/ 07/ 03
02/ 07/ 03
02/ 07/ 03

02/ 07/ 03
02/ 10/ 03
02/ 10/ 03

02/ 10/ 03

02/ 10/ 03
02/ 10/ 03
02/ 10/ 03
02/ 18/ 03
02/ 18/ 03
02/ 18/ 03
02/ 18/ 03
02/ 25/ 03
02/ 25/ 03
03/ 05/ 03
03/11/03
03/11/03
03/11/03
03/13/03

BILL: HB 55

REPRESENTATI VE( S) FATE

Jrn- Page
0035
0035

0035

0153

0166
0166

0166
0167
0167

0172
0231

0450

~ NN N NN AN AN AN AN N

TIITITITITITITITITITITEZTE T I T T

NN NN AN AN NN AN AN NN NN

Action
PREFI LE RELEASED (1/10/03)
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
L&C, STA, FIN
L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
<Bi || Hearing Postponed>
COSPONSOR('S) : CHENAULT
L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
Moved CSHB 15(L&C) Qut of
Conmittee
M NUTE( L&C)
L& RPT CS(L&C) NT 3DP 4AM
DP: CRAWORD, ROKEBERG
ANDERSON,;
AM LYNN, GATTO, GUTTENBERG
DAHLSTROM
FN1: ZERQ( CED)

FN2: (LAW
COSPONSOR( S):  CRAWFORD
COSPONSOR( S):  KERTTULA

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Schedul ed But Not Heard
COSPONSOR( S) : CROFT

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

SHORT TI TLE: CORRECTI ONAL FACI LI TI ES
REPRESENTATI VE( S) HAWKER, ROKEBERG

SPONSOR( S) :

Jrn-Dat e
01/ 21/ 03
01/ 21/ 03

01/ 21/ 03

HOUSE STA COW TTEE

Jrn- Page
0046
0046

0046

Action
PREFI LE RELEASED (1/17/03)
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
STA, FIN

March 13, 2003



02/ 07/ 03 0154 (H) COSPONSOR( S):  KOHRI NG

03/ 05/ 03 0395 (H) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED

03/ 05/ 03 0395 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME -
REFERRALS

03/ 05/ 03 0395 (H) STA, FIN

03/ 13/ 03 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

GRACE MERKES, Appoi ntee

to the State Comm ssion for Hunman Rights

Sterling, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the State
Comm ssion for Human Ri ghts.

LESTER CHARLES LUNCEFORD, Appoi ntee

to the State Comm ssion on Human Ri ghts

VWhittier, Alaska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the State
Comm ssion for Human Ri ghts.

ROBERT B. SAWER, JR., Appointee

to the State Comm ssion for Human Rights

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the State
Comm ssion for Human Ri ghts.

JI' M POUND, St af f

to Representative Hugh Fate

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: On behal f of Representative Fate, sponsor
of HB 15, explained proposed anendnents to Version I.

JUSTI N ROBERTS, Staff

to Representative G uenberg

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Clarified proposed anendnents to HB 15,
Version |.

STEVE CLEARY, Executive Director

Al aska Public Interest Research G oup (AkPIRG
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 15.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 13, 2003



Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as one of two sponsors of
SSHB 55.

FRANK PRUI TT, Consult ant

Cornel |l Conpani es

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided background information and
answered questions regarding a proposed private prison in
Whittier during the hearing on SSHB 55.

MARVI N W EBE, Seni or Vice-President

Cor nel I Conpani es

Ventura, California

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Described negotiation and planning
processes of a private conpany in developing a prison facility
and answered questions during the hearing on SSHB 55.

BEN BUTLER, Council Menber

Cty of Whittier

Whittier, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions during the hearing on
SSHB 55.

MARY BOWERY

(Address not provided)

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Ofered her insight regarding a private
prison in Tennessee during the hearing on SSHB 55.

MAKO HAGCGERTY
Honmer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SSHB 55.

FRANK SM TH

(Address not provided)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  During the hearing on SSHB 55, testified as
a citizen activist to offer exanples of failed private prisons
and to reconmend certain questions for the commttee to ask the
private prison conpany invol ved,

W LLARD DUNHAM Menber
Cty Council

Cty of Seward

Sewar d, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 13, 2003



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing on SSHB 55, testified
regarding the Spring Creek Correction Center and possibilities
for expansion there.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-25, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Representati ves Hol m
Seat on, Lynn, Guenberg, and Wyhrauch were present at the cal
to order. Representatives Dahlstrom and Berkowitz arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS5

State Comm ssion for Human Rights

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that the commttee would consider the
confirmation of the foll ow ng appointees to the State Comm ssion
for Human Ri ghts: Grace Merkes; Lester Charles Lunceford; and
Robert B. Sawyer, Jr.

Number 0180

GRACE MERKES, Appointee to the State Comm ssion for Hunan
Rights, referred to her resunme J[included in the comittee
packet] and told nenbers she is currently a nenber of the
bor ough assenbly. She said she'd attended the previous day's
neeting and would be proud to be on the conm ssion and work with
that team She told the comittee she has no prejudice
regarding race, creed, sex, or "the things that are required in
our civil rights law' and thus would be a good representative
for this comm ssion. Referring to the assenbly and sone
comm ssions she has served on, M. Merkes said she is quite
famliar wth making difficult decisions and referencing rules,
regul ations, and statutes in order to do so. She said she has
the time to serve on the conm ssion and would like to have the
opportunity to nake positive decisions for the comunity nenbers
regarding their civil rights.

Number 0400

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Ms. Merkes to bring the commttee
up to date on her history since 1995.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 13, 2003



IVS. MERKES responded that in 1995 she retired as the
adm nistrative assistant for the Division of Famly and Youth
Servi ces because she wanted to focus on her volunteer work. For
exanpl e, she worked as a volunteer to get the Head Start program
started in Sterling, and that program now has 40 children in it.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Ms. Merkes if she planned to
remain active with the bid commttee for the Arctic Wnter
Ganes.

MS. MERKES answered, "As a volunteer, yes."
Number 0579

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked Ms. Merkes to predict what mght be
the biggest, nost inportant, or nost controversial issues she
m ght face in the position to which she has been nom nat ed.

M5. MERKES related her understanding that a majority of
conplaints seen by the conm ssion relate to enpl oynent and race.

Number 0681

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked Ms. Merkes what the authority of
the State Commission for Human Rights is and how nuch of a
commtnent it requires.

M5. MERKES responded that to her know edge, the authority is
through statute; it gives the commssion the power to decide
conplaints, with the assistant attorney general acting as the
"overseer." Those on the comm ssion are not state enployees,
and the appointnents are for a five-year period. She offered
her understanding that the comm ssion neets three tinmes a year,
but reviews cases as they are presented. She indicated that
dependi ng on the subject, the review can be nade by one to three
peopl e.

Number 0800

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked Ms. Merkes if she has any other
experience with human rights issues.

M5. MERKES replied that she considers human rights issues a
"living experience," earned through working with people wth
differing races, creeds, and religions, for exanple. She said
she thinks people know if they have prejudices or not, and
reiterated her belief that she is a good candidate for the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 13, 2003



posi tion. Regar di ng experience, M. Mrkes noted that when she
worked for the Division of Famly and Youth Services she gained
experience with filings, proceedings, hearings, confidentiality,
and subpoenas, for exanple.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said Ms. Merkes' name sounded famliar
and asked if she has been a candidate for office.

M5. MERKES answered yes; twi ce she has been a candidate for the
state House - once as a Denocrat and once as a Republi can.

Nunmber 0950

LESTER CHARLES LUNCEFORD, Appointee to the State Conm ssion on
Human Rights, told the conmttee that during his years in |aw
enforcenment in the state, he has worked alnost daily with issues
regarding victinms' rights and, in sone respects, human rights.
He noted that he has an extensive background in crimnal
i nvestigations. He related his belief that the volunteer
comm ssion is inportant to the state in that it investigates and
makes I npor t ant deci si ons regarding discrimnation cases
involving race, sex, and religion. He said he attended one of
the first neetings yesterday, and revealed that he has a deeper
respect for the staff of the conm ssion due to the volune of
calls it receives each year regarding discrimnation cases. He
concluded, "I believe | would be able to give them an unbi ased
opi nion and render good, sound decisions."

Nunber 1143

ROBERT B. SAWER, JR, Appointee to the State Comm ssion for
Human Rights, told the conmttee that he is originally from Key
West, Florida, and has lived in Fairbanks since 1981. He said
he has worked 30 years in the US. Arny, 4 years of that as the
Command Sergeant Major at Fort Wainwight. He stated, "This
position gave ne a great deal of authority and responsibility in
the involvenment and nediation of the variety of conflicts in the
area of human rights.”™ He said his experience in the Arny also
afforded him the opportunity to interact with people of many
cultures, which is why he has an appreciation for diversity.

MR. SAWYER noted that he has served three years as president of
t he Fairbanks Honel ess Coalition, one year as president of the
| ocal Red Cross chapter, and eight years as the state enpl oynent
and training program manager. Furthernore, he has served as a
board nenber of the school district, the ethics comnmttee, and
"healing racism" for exanple, and was executive director at the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 13, 2003



Fai rbanks <crisis clinic foundation. He specified that his
reason for serving on the State Comm ssion for Human Rights is
to continue serving the people of Fairbanks and Al aska by
hel ping to enforce the state's human rights | aws.

Nunber 1253

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM commented that M. Sawer's work with the
J.P. Jones Community Center has been a trenmendous boon to the
young people [in the Fairbanks area].

MR. SAWER, in response to questions, explained that the center
offers crisis intervention and tries to reduce the nunber of

sui ci des. Noting that in his travels around the world he has
interacted with people of all cultures, he said, "I learned to
appreciate ... differences, and also I've found that we're nore

ali ke than different."

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN thanked M. Sawer for service to his
country.

[Although no formal notion was made, the confirmations of
Ms. Merkes, M. Lunceford, and M. Sawyer were advanced fromthe
House State Affairs Standing Conmittee.]

HB 15- TELEMARKETERS NO- CALL LI STS

Number 1400

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 15, "An Act relating to establishing the Al aska
No-Call List, a data base of residential telephone custoners who
do not wish to receive telephonic solicitations; providing that
the data base be conpiled at no cost to the customers; requiring
paid telephonic sellers to purchase the data base; requiring
tel ephonic sellers to identify thenselves; requiring telephonic
solicitors who are otherwise exenpt from registration as
tel ephonic solicitors to file with the Departnent of Law and
purchase the data base; and providing for an effective date.”
[A proposed commttee substitute (CS), Version |, |abeled 23-
LS0058\1, Craver, 2/28/ 03, had been adopted as a work draft and
anended on March 11, 2003.]

Nunmber 1455

JIM POUND, Staff to Representative Hugh Fate, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, speaking on behalf of Representative Fate, sponsor,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 13, 2003



noted that there were sone new anendnents that Representative
G uenberg woul d offer

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nentioned a subconmttee neeting
yest er day.

Nunmber 1650

MR.  POUND brought attention to Amendnent 1, |[|abeled 23-
LS0058\ 1.2, Craver, 3/12/03, which read:

Page 2, lines 15 - 17:
Delete all material.

Rel etter the follow ng subparagraphs accordingly.

Page 3, line 11:
Delete "(O"
I nsert "(B)"

Page 3, line 15:
Delete "(i)"
| nsert ","

Page 3, lines 17 - 19:
Del ete "and
(ii) drop fromthe program each residenti al
subscriber who fails to reregister and pay the annual
registration fee;"

Page 4, line 7:
Delete "(B)"
I nsert "(A)"

Page 7, line 25:
Del ete "AS 45.50.475(b)(1)(B)"
I nsert "AS 45.50.475(b) (1) (A"

Page 8, line 25:
Del ete "AS 45.50.475(b)(1)(B)"
| nsert "AS 45.50.475(b) (1) (A"

Page 9, line 3:
Del ete "AS 45.50.475(b)(1)(B)"
I nsert "AS 45.50.475(b) (1) (A"

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 13, 2003



MR. POUND explained that the section of Amendnent 1 on page 2,
lines 15-17, would delete the $5 registration fee; therefore
the [part of the] deletion on page 3, lines 17-19 [referring to
the fee, is no |onger necessary].

MR. POUND suggested a friendly anendnent to Amendnment 1 such
that page 3, lines 17-19, would read as foll ows:

and
(i1) drop from the program each residential
subscri ber who fails to annually reregister.

MR. POUND expl ained that people in Alaska tend to be relatively
transient, and tel ephones "don't necessarily always follow the

people around the state.” Thus the friendly anendnent to
Amendrment 1 would give an automatic annual update to the
contractor, who wll know that that phone nunber is no |onger
required to have the no-call list, without getting the tel ephone

conpanies involved in it.
Nunber 1777

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his understanding that the gist
is to drop the annual registration fee for the consuner.

MR. POUND concurred.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG al | uded to past discussion and recalled
that it seenmed to him nost of the conmttee nenbers hadn't
want ed the custoner to have to pay.

Nunber 1790

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noted that the custonmer would still be
required to register and asked what that would entail.

MR. POUND stated his understanding that the registration would
be handled with a toll-free nunber or online, "depending on how

their private contractor sets it up.” In further response, he
confirmed that the consuner would have to call the toll-free
nunber annually to ask to be kept off the list, and that

Representative Harry Crawford and [and his staff nenber] had
taken part [in fornulating the anmendnents].

Nunber 1819

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 13, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nobved to adopt Anendnment 1 [text
provi ded previously]. There being no objection, it was so
or der ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON returned the committee's attention to
M. Pound's previously suggested anmendnent.

Number 1939

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt a conceptual anendnent
[ subsequently treated as an anendnent to Anmendnent 1] such that

page 3, lines [18-19], would read as foll ows:
(i) drop from t he pr ogram each
resi denti al subscri ber who fails to

reregi ster annually.

There being no objection, it was so ordered.

Nunber 1982

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to adopting
Amendnent 1, as anended. There being no objection, it was soO
or der ed.

Nunber 2013

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Anendnent 2 "for the
purpose of discussion.”™ Amendnent 2 was | abeled 23-LS0058\I. 3,
Craver, 3/12/03, and read:

Page 5, line 23:

Delete "calls on behalf of the person”
Insert "all calls nmade on behalf of the person who
enpl oys i ndi vi dual s to engage in t el ephoni ¢
solicitations"

There being no objection, it was so ordered.

MR. POUND, regarding Amendnent 2, explained, "Even though it's
twice in a 30-day period, it makes that nuch nore of an offense,
and refers to all calls so that it doesn't allow for, 'Let's sit

here on the 31st day of the nonth, and we'll nmake our two
illegal phone calls, and then ... tonorrow we'll nake our two
nore illegal phone calls.'™

Number 2070

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 13, 2003



JUSTIN ROBERTS, Staff to Representative G uenberg, Alaska State
Legislature, clarified, "The intent was to nmake sure that it's
not two phone calls to the sane person; it's any two phone calls
made within the state that violate the section.™ He said
al though "who enploys individual s" restates that the person is
an enployer, he is not sure that |anguage is necessary.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d that phrase was included to ensure
there is no question who the term "person" refers to. He
offered his belief that it hel ps because it once again defines
the term "person” in AS 45.50.475 (d), which now is set out at
lines 12-24. "So, the term "person” throughout that subsection
nmeans the person who enploys individuals to engage in tel ephonic
solicitation,” he clarified.

Number 2155

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if HB 15 or any of its anendnents would
prohibit a Grl Scout who was soliciting a friend to buy
cooki es, for exanple.

MR. POUND responded that two clauses cover that. He noted that
there is an exenption in existing statute for nonprofit
corporations. He also referred to page 6, beginning on |ine 23,
which read as foll ows:

(iv) [(v)] a person soliciting business from
prospective purchasers who have, wthin the last 18
[24] nonths, purchased from the person naking the
solicitation

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks it is clear that the
bill is intended to cover comercial, for-profit telephonic
solicitations, not charitable or nonprofit ones.

Number 2190

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG restated t he not i on to adopt
Amendnment 2 [text provided previously]. There being no
objection, it was so ordered.

Nunber 2220

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to Amendnent 3, |abeled 23-
LS0058\ 1.4, Craver, 3/12/03, which read:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 13, 2003



Page 2, line 21, follow ng "data base;":

Insert "the attorney general nay adjust the
annual data base access fee by regulation to fully
cover the costs of creating and mai ntaining the Al aska
No- Cal | List;"

MR. ROBERTS remarked, "The problem wth this is that the way
it's been drafted, it restates lines 24-25." However, he said
the intent of the anmendnent was "to make it so that it's $750,
unl ess the attorney general determines that that's not enough to
make the program sustainable.”™ He nentioned past discussion to
del ete the $750.

Number 2258

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG announced t hat he wouldn't of fer
Amendnent 3, but instead would offer Amendment 2b from the
previous neeting. [It was rel abel ed Anmendnent 4.]

Number 2339

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Anmendnent 4, which read
[original punctuation provided]:

Section 2. AS 45.50.475(b)
1 Page 2, line 18, renove "of $750."

This provision allows the attorney general to set the
access fee.

MR. POUND asked if the words "by regulation" needed to be added
W thin page 2, |ines 24-25.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he'd |ike to take that as a
separ at e anendnent.

Nunmber 2386

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to adopting
Amendnent 4. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

Number 2399
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG returned discussion to what would
becone Conceptual Anendnent 5. He agreed with M. Pound about

adding "by regulation", but pointed out that it may result in a
smal | fiscal note.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 13, 2003



CHAI R VEYHRAUCH r esponded that he thinks this commttee needs to
focus on the policy issues, not the fiscal inpacts. He said he
thinks the conmttee's intent is that the cost of be passed on
to those who would make the calls, not to the consunmer or the
public.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested he'd offer an anmendnment and
submt a letter of intent to the House Finance Conmttee.

Number 2712

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered Conceptual Anendnent 5 as
fol |l ows:

Page 2, lines 24-25

Delete "the attorney general nay annually adjust the
fees received by the designated agent;"

Insert "the attorney general may adjust the annua
data base access fee by regulation to fully cover the
costs of creating and maintaining the Al aska No-Call
List;"

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH remarked that this is the sanme |anguage
[originally in Arendnent 3], only inserted in a different spot.

Number 2833

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to adopting
Conceptual Anendnent 5. There being no objection, it was so
or der ed.

Number 2885

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to report CSHB 15, Version 23-
LS0058\1, Craver, 02/28/03, as anended, out of comrmittee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal note.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that he wanted to give soneone the
opportunity to testify.

Number 2915
STEVE CLEARY, Executive Director, Al aska Public | nt er est

Research G oup (AkKPIRG, said AKPIRG supports HB 15. He said he
is excited to be able to tell the nenbers of the group that soon

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 13, 2003



there will be a no-call list for which they can register at no
cost.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG rem nded nenbers that an additional
anendnent had been adopted at the previous hearing.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to the notion
There being no objection, CSHB 15(STA) was reported from the
House State Affairs Standing Conmmttee.

HB 55- CORRECTI ONAL FACI LI TI ES

Number 2979

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO 55, "An Act expressing
| egislative intent regarding privately operated correctional
facility space and services; relating to the devel opnent and
financing of privately operated correctional facility space and
services; authorizing the Departnent of Corrections to enter
into an agreenent for the confinenment and care of prisoners in
privately operated correctional facility space; authorizing the
Department of Corrections to enter into agreenents wth
municipalities to expand existing correctional facilities; and
providing for an effective date."

TAPE 03-25, SIDE B
Number 2982

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVWKER, Al aska State Legislature, one of two
sponsors of SSHB 55, told the conmmttee Al aska has had
i nadequate prison bed space for sonme time, and has found itself
in the position of contracting with a private prison contractor
in Arizona. That facility currently holds 600-700 of Alaska's
i nmates, and has held as high as 800. Thus SSHB 55 authorizes
the Cty of Wittier to contract wth the Departnent of
Corrections (DOC) to provide, staff, and operate eight prison
facilities. Conditions being inposed on the Gty of Wittier to
provi de what an approximtely 400-bed facility include that the
city contract with an outside third-party provider "of this sort
of service" and acquire that relationship in conpliance wth
conpetitive procurenment requirenents.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said the authorization given in SSHB 55
has further constraints. The nobst inportant is that the per-
diem cost of the facility shall not exceed $94 [per inmate a
day]. The largest difference between SSHB 55 and simlar bills

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 13, 2003



in previous sessions is that SSHB 55 makes a firm constraint
upon the Gty of Wittier - the folks that it elects to do
business with - to present this project.

Number 2827

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER highlighted two matters of public policy
for menbers to consider: whether to treat Al askan offenders in
state versus out of state, which is what is currently happening;
and whether to have those corrections services perfornmed by a
private contractor, which can be done at significantly |ess cost
than governnent can perform the sanme services. He asked the
commttee to bear with himas the facts regarding the issue are
reveal ed. Represent ati ve Hawker pointed out that whereas other
comunities have voted down private prison projects, 80 percent
of Whittier voters support this project. Thus he asked the
commttee to keep separate the objections that other conmunities
may have rai sed about siting a prison in their own comunities.

Nunber 2679

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER indicated there is a trenmendous anount
information in support his position that private prisons cost
| ess. For exanple, the Mackinac Center [for] Public Policy in
M chigan | ooked at a private-contract 450-bed facility for nen
under the age of 20; in contrast to the varying facilities
within Mchigan, that 450-bed facility resulted in a $2.5 to
$6.9 million annual savings, and the study concluded that those
savings are not uncommon. Representative Hawker said 28
separate studies of private prison facilities have shown that
virtually all these prisons have saved the community noney. He
noted that a Harvard Law Review article [Vol. 115, June 2002
No. 7, included in the commttee packet] concluded that savings
were incurred with no decrease in the quality of services; he
asked that anyone desiring to make a thorough evaluation study
this report.

Number 2532

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM read from the first paragraph of the sponsor
statenent, which stated [original punctuation provided]:

House Bill 55 authorizes the Departnent of Corrections
to enter into agreement with the Cty of Wittier for
a 1,200-bed nedium security correctional facility and
services for a period of 25 years. The facility shal

be constructed and operated by third-party contractors

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 13, 2003



procured through a conpetitive bid process. If the
authorization is granted, the daily per diem costs nay
not exceed $94 an inmate a day or 85 percent of the
inmate cost per day to the state for the construction
and operation by the state of equivalent facilities.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked Representative Hawker to explain how
[ 85 percent] is less than $94 a day.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVKER r esponded as fol |l ows:

If we have a total per-diem cost and conparable,
equivalent facilities here that we could determne ...
could be provided by the State of Alaska or, in this
case, that ... in order for this proposal to go
forward, the contractor nust be able to provide the
services at no nore than 85 percent of that
contractor's rate, or $94 a day -- SO
hypothetically it's a "lesser than." ... It becones a
| esser of $94 a day or the 84 percent of inmate cost.

Number 2439

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said one concern is that private
prisons could “"cherry pick®™ the easier, | ess expensive
pri soners, which would drive up the cost to the state.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER replied that the proposed facility [for
Whittier] is a nediumlow security facility, largely designed to
house the bulk of Alaska s prisoners. A maxi mum security
facility is not proposed because the expansion that is needed is
in the medium and | esser-secured facilities. He nentioned the
choi ce of |ooking at expanding services out of state, expanding
existing facilities in state, or | ooking at a large,
concentrated facility "here.”" He nentioned an option to expand
sone of the isolated renote facilities.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said SSHB 55 really attenpts to be a nore
conprehensive solution to the state's dilenms, and does
authorize the expansion of existing state-owned facilities in
Fai r banks, the WMatanuska-Susitna Borough, Bethel, and Seward,
specifically looking at being able to provide for the variety
and spreadi ng the denographi c burden of Al aska's prison base.

Number 2336

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 13, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ requested information as to the current
per-bed costs. Noting that there is no sunset provision, he
asked if that is deliberate or an oversight. In response to a
question by Representative Hawker, he confirned that he is
referring to a sunset provision which requires that construction
begin within a certain period of time or else the authority
woul d expire.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said that is sonething he'd be wlling to
negoti at e.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER, in response to a query by Representative
G uenberg, noted that there is an executive sunmary of the
project in the comittee packet.

Nunber 2267

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG referred to Representative Holmnis
previ ous question. He said he'd read [page 2] lines 27-28 as
saying "whichever is greater.” He suggested that the phrase

"whi chever is |less" be added in order to avoid confusion.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER indicated he'd already considered that
and opined that it is clearest as is.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expressed concern about
m sinterpretation. He referred to Section 3, which addresses
the authorization [of certain municipalities] and asked if there
is a reason that Anchorage, for exanple, is not included.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER responded that SSHB 55 resulted from a

merger of two bills last vyear. The facilities [listed in
SSHB 55] were those identified in the alternate bill that was
nerged to create this year's vehicle. He commented that once
constructive involvenent is received from DOC, there wll

certainly be room to exam ne whether the facilities listed are,
in fact, the nost appropriate ones to accomopdate the m ssion of
the bill, which is to provide a conprehensive solution. He
added, "W're very open to continued dialogue if this bil
progresses.”

Nunber 2124
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 3, beginning on line 29,
regarding the authorization to |ease correctional facility space

Wi th nmunicipalities. He asked whether those are to be operated
by Cornell Conpanies under this bill.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 13, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER answered that they'd continue to be
operated by whatever operator was currently operating them He
said presunably that would be a continuation of state operation

Number 2080

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there is no authorization currently
under law for the Departnent of Corrections to enter into
agreenents wth nunicipalities for expanding correctional
facilities.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said that is a point of law he isn't
qualified to address.

Number 2020

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if the Gty of Wittier had given
any thought to bonding itself and building the prison [on its
own, without the help of the state].

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER answer ed t hat muni ci pal bondi ng,
particularly for the Gty of Wittier, which is in the
"unor gani zed bor ough, " woul d ultimately i nvol ve a
collateralization with a state |ease agreenent. He added, "The
strong preference of the folks involved in those things in the
State of Alaska is that the state is involved in the bonding
process.” He said the point of SSHB 55 is to authorize DOC and
Whittier to go forward to ascertain if this project can be put
together with the criteria set out. Representative Hawker
opined that legislators sit as the assenbly to unorganized
boroughs; therefore, it is appropriate for themto work with the
city and not ask it to approach this as a "free-enterprise,
specul ative venture."

Nunber 1925

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if there would be as nuch need
for state involvenent if the Cty of Wittier were within a
bor ough.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVKER sai d he didn't know.

Nunber 1872

FRANK PRUI TT, Consul t ant, Cor nel | Conpani es, informed the
conmmittee that he'd been conmm ssioner of DOC under Governor

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 13, 2003



Hi ckel ; deputy comm ssioner under Governor Cowper; and |ega
counsel under Governor Sheffield. He noted that in the past
seven years he has had the privilege of traveling to Fairbanks,
North Pole, Delta Junction, Nenana, Kenai, Ketchikan, W angell

Ekl ut na, None, and Pal ner; on each occasion, he was invited by
public officials, chanbers of commerce, and Native corporations,

all interested in the econom c devel opnent and stable jobs that
are associated with hosting a correctional facility, and he'd
been representing an in-state or out-of-state private

corrections conpany or a devel opnent group.

MR. PRU TT reported that some communities had rejected the idea
i mredi ately; some found the idea economically infeasible in a
renote community; one won overwhel mng public support through
two votes and then changed directions; and another "got the
horse of |egislation ahead of the cart of public support.” Al
have the sanme goal, however, which is econom c devel opnent. He
continued as follows:

W're here representing a community that saw an
opportunity to deliver these services. They secured
overwhel m ng public support, they've passed enabling
ordi nances, they've gone through procurenent process,
and they've secured a highly conpetent conmpany to
develop this plan. The plan is one of two plans that

are before you ... today. One of the proposals is to
build a 1,200-bed prison in Sutton. The Whittier
proposal is to build a 1,200-bed prison in Wittier.

In nmy experience, both ... the Sutton proposal and the
VWhittier proposal are based on sound correctional
practice. |'ve analyzed them both, been involved in

both, [and there's] no question in ny mnd. Both are
| ocated near Alaska's <center of population and,
unfortunately, center of crinme. Both capture
efficiencies through their design, and through the ...
1,200 beds, rather than 600 beds or 200 beds. Both of
these are |located where construction costs are the

| owest in the state. | ndeed, Whittier is a deepwater
port, where the construction materials cone right to
the site.

Both are |ocated where wages and benefits are the
| owest, and both are | ocated roughly 50 nmles fromthe
nost sophisticated, plentiful, fire, Ilife, safety,
program housi ng, and human resources in the state.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 13, 2003



Nunmber 1595
MR. PRU TT conti nued:

The substantive difference between the two plans is

managenent and cost. The Whittier prison wll be
managed by a private conpany; Sutton will be state
oper at ed. The total capital and operating cost at
Sutton - that the Departnment of Corrections has
testified to in the Senate - is $110 per day per
pri soner. The total cost for the Wittier prison is
$94 per day per prisoner, which is a cap that was just
di scussed.

And on this point | want to be perfectly clear that
the $94 per diem covers the total projected operating
and capital cost for the prison, including mjor
medical, including inmate prograns, including staff

recruiting, training, equipnent, facility maintenance,
and even the liability of failed expectations.

This project will deliver the same quality service as
the State of Alaska does in its own correctiona
services, and that quality will be ensured through a

contract with the state. The only cost above the $94
should be the cost of bringing the prisoners to the

door, and the cost of nonitoring the contract. Those
are the expenses that we would anticipate above the
$94.

There's a perception that the Wittier bill and the
Sutton bill C are conpeting plans, and this
perception's entirely wong. And what it's doing is

it's diverting attention from the real problens here.
The real problem is that neither one of these bills
standing alone is going to solve the state's prison
bed short age.

In your packets you have a handout on the Wittier
pri son. On the inside cover there's a graph; the
graph goes up. This graph is taken from the
Department of Correction's web site, which has its
denographic materials. The Departnent of Correction's
i nmat e popul ati on has grown over the last 20 years at
an average rate of 5 percent a year. W're not aware
of any denographic changes that (indisc.) from the
State of Alaska or any legislation that's being

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 13, 2003



proposed before this body that is likely to stop that
growh rate. The growth rate equates between 160-200
prisoners a year, depending on whether it's a 4
percent year or a 7 percent year.

Nunber 1403

MR. PRUTT referred to the docunent |abeled "State of Al aska
Projected Prison Bed Demand & Cost Analysis,” an independent
analysis [copy in packets] which indicates that by 2006, DOC
will need 1,600 prison beds; by 2,010, another 1,000 to 1,200
beds wll be needed. He said although the Wittier prison would
satisfy current needs, there is room in the state for another
project of equal size in order to neet long-termdemand. |If the
Whittier prison is authorized this vyear, people would be
enpl oyed imedi ately, construction would begin, and the doors

would open in two years. He said if the Sutton facility is
authorized this year, the state has testified that the doors
will open in four to five years. The two projects wouldn't

conpete because Whittier's would be a short-term solution,
whereas Sutton's would satisfy long-termneeds of the state.

MR. PRUTT noted that Governor Frank Miurkowski has said the
m ssion of his administration is good-paying jobs and reducing
government spending and grow h. M. Pruitt opined that the
VWhittier prison would acconplish these goals. He added, "I'm
not aware of any project before this legislature that has such
i mredi ate and far-reaching inpact in terns of the stinulation of
j obs and econom c devel opnent . "

MR PRUTT referred to the third tabbed section [of the
anal ysis], which is titled, "Wittier Prison Project Economc
| mpact” and was prepared by David Reaune in the last week; it
says returning prisoners to Al aska is good business because even
though the cost wll be nore, [the state] wll get "the
multiplier effect of stinmulating jobs" and the positive inpact
of purchasi ng goods and services in Al aska.

Number 1218

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH referred to Representative Hawker's nention of a
contract with an Arizona conpany to house 600-800 inmates. The
proposed | egislation, he noted, would require construction of a
1,200-bed prison facility. He asked if that is what is
i mredi ately needed, or if that is a projected nunber.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- March 13, 2003



MR, PRU TT reiterated that the projected demand by 2006 is 1,600
[ beds]; Wiittier is projected at 1,200, based upon the
"sentenced prison population.” Corrections is a unified system
that has facilities that deliver both prison services and jail
services throughout the state. The notion, he explained, is to

provide a |arger, centralized facility, and "nove those
sentenced prisoners out to nake roomin the jails for jail-type
of fenders. " He renmarked that there are conmunities that are

"full to the gills" with pre-sentence and pre-trial offenders,
and it coul d need expansion.

Nunber 1117

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON referred to Section 2 of SSHB 55,
beginning on line 25. He said it appears that the per-diem
costs are one cost and that there will be another, separate item

[ under subparagraph] (B) to cover capital costs.

MR. PRU TT said he hopes a clear reading of SSHB 55 would show
that the $94 per diem includes operating and capital costs
conbi ned.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON remarked that it reads as two separate,
paral l el [costs].

Nunber 1019

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said it includes the cost of capital
construction and operati on.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he'd like to ask for an amendnent at
sonme point to include [the | anguage regarding the capital costs]
under subparagraph (A, instead of having it be [isted
separately.

Number 0990

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM referred to M. Pruitt's previous
statenent regarding the only two costs not included [in the per-
diem cost]. She recalled that one was bringing the business to
t he door.

MR, PRU TT said the second would be the cost of overseeing the

contract. He explained that DOC should have a nonitoring
function.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 13, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked M. Pruitt if he could offer
i nsight regarding the cost of that oversight and who woul d pay.

MR PRUTT replied that the question would probably be better
directed to DOC, however, based on what he had seen of [DOC s]
budget, it appears the cost of overseeing that contract,
including transportation, as wth [the current facility in]
Arizona, is about $1.89 a day per prisoner.

Nunmber 0895

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked what the prisoner-to-guard ration
woul d be.

MR PRU TT deferred to M. W ebe.
Number 0753

MARVI N W EBE, Senior Vice-President, Cornell Conpanies, told the
commttee [his conpany] has a basic design concept for the
VWhittier prison site, but part of that process is to get input
through dialogue wth representatives of DCC He said an
i nt ergover nnent al agreenent between DOC and the Gty of
VWhittier, as well as an agreenment between the Cty of Wittier
and Cornell Conpanies, is anticipated and will help define sone
of the specifics. He enphasized that Cornell Conpanies is
confident it can deliver the project for $94 a day [per inmate].

MARVIN WEBE reported that there wll be a staffing ratio "on

the security side" of 6:1, inmates to staff. He noted that
[ Cornell Conpanies] is proposing nore segregated beds than in
the design for Sutton. In the end, there will be a discussion
as to whether that nany beds will be needed; after negotiation,
there will be a final design plan that wll be firmy adjusted,
and the staffing will have to conform to that requirenent.

Regardl ess, he added, it wll not change [Cornell Conpanies']
commitnent to not exceed $94 to do that job.

Number 0619

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM referred to testinony that it takes two
years to build a private prison. He asked why it would take
four to five years to build a public one.

MR. WEBE said there is no question [Cornell Conpanies] has a

nore flexible approach toward procurenent. The conpany still
has laws to conply with, but internally it can nake decisions

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 13, 2003



qui ckly because it is a private business. He said the conpany
is notivated to produce tinmely results; its drive for efficiency
and to neet its deadlines <causes the conpany to use a
procurenent process that's flexible and "just gets things done."
He opined that alnobst universally agreed upon is this: private
operators are one of the single |largest advantages to
privatization of correctional facilities because they have
historically been able to put up facilities nore quickly than
gover nnent can.

Number 0468

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked why, if statistics show that by a
certain year [Alaska] will need 2,600 beds, a 2,400-bed facility
isn't being built.

MR  WEBE stated his understanding that, generally, the
government wants to match the cost with the actual need. If a
2,600-bed facility were built now, those beds would be sitting
enpty for several years, and yet all the capital expenditure
wi || have been put in the system

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM remarked that he doesn't like short-term
solutions to long-term problens. He asked if the Wittier
prison, for exanple, would be expandabl e at sonme point.

Number 0281

MR. WEBE responded that every tinme [the conpany] designs a
prison, it considers the potential for expansion. He noted that
the current "footprint" [for Wittier] is 15 acres, which sets
sone limtations [towards expansion], but doesn't preclude the
conpany from considering ways to add another 200 to 400 beds to
the site.

Number 0197

BEN BUTLER, Council Menber, Gty of Wittier, noted that he al so
the former mayor of Whittier and offered to answer questions.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if the state would have to have
as nmuch involvenent if the City of Whittier were in a borough.

MR. BUTLER said he didn't know. He suggested the attorney for
the Gty of Wiittier may be able to answer that.

Number 0104

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 13, 2003



MR. PRU TT proffered that the structure of SSHB 55 is simlar to
the structure that enabled the Kenai Peninsula Borough to
deliver correctional services in Kenai. He said he doesn't see
any distinction between a municipal entity that's in an
unor gani zed borough or a borough itself; they both use the sane
process. In response to a followup question by Representative
G uenberg, he said the Gty of Wittier is a second-class city.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Pruitt if there is anything
that [the Cty of \Wittier] could do to reduce state
i nvol venent .

MR PRUTT replied, "Perhaps ... the farmng capacity.” He
deferred further coment to M. W ebe.

MR. W EBE responded that he has no expertise in the area of the
issues regarding the classification of <cities in Alaska
However, he indicated he could offer his experience regarding
this kind of a financing structure.

TAPE 03-26, SIDE A
Number 0001

MR, WEBE indicated a nmunicipality has |ess expensive ways "to
do that" because of the tax codes and the ability to use sone
tax-exenpt financing. He said regardless of a city's size, nmany
times "those kinds of structures” are based essentially on
revenue stream He said annual appropriation is the nmgjor
foundati on on which that financing is predicated.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked M. Butler how many bids from private
prison conmpanies the Cty of Wittier foresees regarding this
proj ect.

MR. BUTLER answered that originally, when the city put out five
requests for proposals (RFPs), three conpanies responded. He
noted that the law firm of Perkins, Coie, and G nhart (ph) set
up the procurenment methods and followed it through. He
indicated a commttee selected one out of the three responses,
which was Cornell Conpanies. In response to a followup
guestion, he confirmed that the Gty of Wittier wirked on the
drafting of SSHB 55 with the hel p of [Representative Hawker].

Nunber 0215

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 13, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER expl ained that the bill was drafted by his
staff while working with representatives of the City of Wittier
and representatives of Cornell [Conpanies]. 1In regard to one of
Chair Weyhrauch's previous questions, he noted that |ast year
there was expert testinony before both the House and the Senate
that the Wiittier procurenent process satisfied the conpetitive
requi renents under the State of Al aska procurenent code.

[ Li eutenant Dan Lowden of the Al aska State Troopers, Departnent
of Public Safety, representing Judicial Services in Anchorage,
of fered to answer questions.]

Number 0457

MARY BOWERY told the conmttee she is from Tennessee, a state
that was involved officially with private prisons several years
ago; Tennessee had worked with a private prison corporation
ot her than Cornell Conpanies. She said the prison she worked in
at that tinme was involved in a three-year federal study
regardi ng public-versus-private prisons. One result of that
study showed that the cost difference was only 38 cents per day
per inmate. The conpany that the State of Tennessee worked with
had in its contract that it wouldn't accept inmates with HYV
[ human i nmunodeficiency virus], AIDS [acquired imunodeficiency
syndrone], cancer, tuberculosis, or hepatitis C The conpany
al so put a $4,000 nedical cap on each inmate per year, which she
said "took us by surprise.”

M5. BOWERY reported that some other things |earned were that the
state was responsible for the cost of any inmates who escaped
from the private prison because the conpany didn't have the
| egal jurisdiction; that any enpty beds which were part of the
private prison could be filled with inmates from ot her states;
that if an assault or other mmjor crime occurred wthin the
prison, the State of Tennessee had to bear the cost of the
prosecution as well as pick up the cost for any of its own
inmates who were injured; and that the private prison only
provi ded mniml programs to neet the contract, and had m ni na
wor k crews. She nentioned a study that showed work crews in
public [prisons] put in over 17 tines as nuch work tinme as the
private prison crews. Furthernore, private prisons would only
house "medium or |less-custody inmates,”" whereas the public
prison had to house maxi num security inmates, for exanple, which
IS nore expensive.

Nunmber 0687

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 13, 2003



CHAI R VEYHRAUCH st ated his understanding that the private prison
in Arizona will offer additional programs if the State of Al aska
requests them and is willing to pay for them it is a function
of contract, and not at the discretion of the facility.

MS. BOWERY said her concern is that Alaska get what it pays for.
She went on to say that nobst correctional standards require a

team that can respond within about a 15-minute tinme limt in
case of a natural disaster, for exanple. She voiced concern
that there may not be an adequate workforce in the immed ate
area [in Whittier] that could respond. She noted that the
pri son where she worked has close to 2,000 inmates, and part of
it had to be evacuated during a flashflood. She said it

concerns her that people may have to travel from Anchorage
during an energency.

M5. BOWNERY nentioned dealing with people's freedom and their

|l ack of civil rights. She cautioned the state to be careful
about placing that responsibility into the hands of the | owest
bi dder . In response to a question by Chair Wyhrauch, she said

she lived in northeast Tennessee, and the prison at which she
worked was fully accredited and recognized as one of the best

prisons in the country. She added, "I'mvery proud of it."
Number 0888

MAKO HAGGERTY stated opposition to SSHB 55. He commended
Ms. Bowery for a fine job of representing all the downfalls of
the private prison industry. He said the private prison
experinment has basically failed in every state that has
conducted it. He related his belief that incarceration and

i nprisonnment of crimnals is one of the few real obligations of

the state, and shouldn't be farnmed out to the private sector.

M. Haggerty told the commttee that he has no financial

interest in the issue; he isn't a prisoner and doesn't own stock
in a private prison conpany. He opined that there nust be a | ot

of nmoney in the private prison industry, because "these guys
keep com ng back." He said the comunities that have been
offered the private prison proposal have rejected it. He
rem nded the conmmttee that the Kenai Peninsula voted on whether
to have a private prison and the proposal was rejected 3 to 1,

"after being outspent by the proponents of the private prison
i ndustry of about 4 to 1."

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked M. Haggerty to provide information to the

commttee supporting his previous statenent that all t he
comunities that have been offered the private prison proposal

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- March 13, 2003



have rejected it. He also asked if the Cty of Wittier has
voted on the proposal.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER responded that there has not been a
balloted vote; however, there s a signature petition
representing approximtely 80 percent of the registered voters
inthe City of Wiittier.

MR, HAGGERTY said a private [prison conpany] took [the State of]
M ssissippi to court because the state couldn't keep enough
crimnals in the prison to keep its beds full. He said the only
good thing he could see about SSHB 55 is that it acknow edges
the need to expand existing regional facilities.

Nunber 1218

FRANK SM TH testified that he is a citizen activist who has been
involved in crimnal justice research in service provision, and
his education was focused on corrections. He said he has "been
involved for 32 years,” and used to provide substance abuse
services at Sutton, at the maxinmum and pre-trial prisons, on
contract with the state. He noted that he has published works,
including a chapter published in a book regarding Native

Anericans inside of prisons. He has visited prisons all over
the world, he said, including the prison where Al askans are held
in Arizona and the Cornell [ Conpanies] prison in Baker,

California; the latter had been closed at the tine of his visit
because the state had pulled the contract.

MR. SM TH noted that the contract being considered nowis for $1

billion. He remarked, "People will say and present interesting
things if they're ... trying to hook a billion-dollar fish." He
referred to M. Mko's statenent that private prisons have been
a failed experinent. He said Charles Canpbell, the fornmer

director in DOC, a Ceary nonitor and a warden of many federa
prisons, had testified a nunber of tines last year on the
private prison bill. He nentioned M. Canpbell's work regarding
private prisons in England from the Revolutionary War until
about the 1850s.

MR SMTH said there are failed prisons. One, he noted, was a
CCA [Corrections Corporation of Anerical] prison built in
Youngstown, Chio, and closed after enornous tax "give-backs" and
infrastructure provided by a comunity that was financially
di stressed because of the |oss of steel-working industries. He
said, "That's kind of the poster child for awful nmanagenent of
prisons - escapes, nurders, things like that.” He said CCA has

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- March 13, 2003



built a private prison wth the clear understanding of everyone
involved in the legislature that it wouldn't inport out-of-state
prisoners, and now it is trying to do just that. He |isted
other prisons that have been an absolute disaster, including
ei ght prisons put up by one operator in Texas that failed. The
municipalities had bonded them and, because of the failures,
were |eft holding the tab. He added that the State of Texas
eventual | y bought them back at half price.

Nunber 1436

MR SM TH said he thinks Wittier is virtually unacceptable for
the proposed project. In the last census [2000], it had a
popul ati on of 182, many of them children and retired people. He
said he thinks if the prison were to be built there, they could
expect a maximum of 10 jobs. He noted that there are only eight
famlies receiving any kind of public assistance there.

MR. SM TH concl uded by suggesting that the conmttee ask about
| awsuits that Cornell Conpanies has been involved in. He gave
sone exanples. He also suggested that the commttee investigate
regarding the difficulties [Cornell Conpanies] has had with the
Native corporations. He particularly recomended that the
commttee ask M. Webe about New Mrgan, a closed facility
where the contracts were lost to Cornell Conpanies in a juvenile
facility "for chronic sexual abuse of prisoners.”

Nunmber 1639

W LLARD DUNHAM Menber, City Council, City of Seward, testified
that the good part of the bill is that it finally recognizes the
need for the Spring Creek [Correctional Center] ("Spring Creek")
to be expanded. He said he questions why it has taken so |ong
to do sonething about finishing Spring Creek, which was started
in 1982 and was supposed to have been a 700-bed facility;

however, the legislature and DOC didn't want it to be that big,

so it was cut back to 320 beds. He noted that the city nmade the
footprint and perineter |arge enough to accommodate the origina

pl ans; therefore, only half the building was built on it.

Because of the preparation work that the city did, M. Dunham
estimated that "it has to be cheaper to build than any of the
rest of them" Mentioning a bill proposed last year that
relates to a youth program and an educational program he said
the youth program is currently in operation, and it is being
studi ed by other states because of its great success.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- March 13, 2003



MR. DUNHAM stated, "I'm not happy about our bill being tied to a
private prison, | would have ... hoped that maybe the Crawford
bill would have been better suited for the type of expansion of
the rural areas that you have." He said his key point is that
the facility [in Seward] has to be the cheapest to do. He
opi ned that when there are close to 500 people in a 320- to 350-
bed facility, sonething's wong with the system He added,
"This facility here will be paid off in Septenber 2006 on the
bonds that the Gty of Seward made to put it in there." He
explained that he just doesn't wunderstand the hesitancy to
conplete the facility.

Number 1890

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER commented, "In the public testinony there
were substantial gratuitous assertions and clainms nmade that
reflect personally on a nunber of the people involved in this
project, as well as on the <corporate reputation of the
participants.” He requested that those testifiers submt those
issues in witing, and that the recipients of those assertions
be allowed to respond. [SSHB 55 was hel d over.]

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
10: 01 a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -32- March 13, 2003



